Telecommuting Ad-Hoc Meeting Notes

January 7, 2004

Room 2, First Floor

Metropolitan Washington Council of Governments

777 North Capitol Street, N.E.

Washington, D.C.  

Attendees:

 Mary Bray

MATAC

301-745-5601

mjbray@aol.com
Attended via conference call

Nicholas Ramfos
COG


202-962-3313

nramfos@mwcog.org
Danette Campbell
COG


202-962-3286

dcampbell@mwcog.org
Pam Tucker

MATAC

410-252-5782

tuckerph@aol.com
Denis McElligott
COG


202-962-3314

dmcelligott@mwcog.org
William Michael
GSA


202-273-4663

William.Michael@gsa.gov
Gerry Morrison
VDOT


804-225-3709

Cynthia Capelli
STI, Inc

703-222-9373

sticonsul@aol.com
Lynda Stewart Byrd
MDOT


410- 865-1308
Lstewart-byrd@mdot.state.md.us
Attended via conference call  

Victor Egu

PG DPWT

301-883-3115

Linda Sharp

UXB, Inc.

703-724-9648

Michael McCready
National Head Start

Introductions

The meeting was called to order and introductions were made to include those attending via conference call.

Minutes of the October 8, 2003 Meeting

Mr. Billy Michael made a motion to approve the October 8, 2003 meeting notes.  Mr. Gerry Morrison seconded the motion. 

Telework Virginia Update

Mr. Denis McElligott reported on the overall status of the Telework Virginia (TWVA) pilot program by stating that a meeting was held with the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation to discuss modifications to the existing program.  He said that there are currently 11 companies participating in the pilot program and that 5 additional companies have contracts that are pending.  

Mr. Ramfos stated that the TWVA Focus Group report was still in draft format and that the results have not been finalized.  He further stated that the state is interested in the cost effectiveness of the TWVA program and that the state would like to roll out TWVA to other parts of the state.

Ms. Capelli stated that the TWVA employers she worked with expressed disappointment at the fact that only Virginia residents could participate in the pilot program.

Mr. McElligott explained that the Telework Resource Center would be meeting with PBS (Public Broadcasting Systems)and ManTech to discuss the particulars of the Telework Virginia pilot.  He said that an initial meeting with the selected consultant was also scheduled with Number 6 Software as this organization has been approved as a Telework Virginia company.

Mr. McElligott then introduced Ms. Cynthia Capelli, the selected consultant for the National Headstart and UXB pilot programs.  Ms. Capelli was in attendance to present the final report for these two TWVA companies.

During the course of Ms. Capelli’s presentation, she reviewed the parameters of the Telework Virginia pilot for each company.  Those parameters include:

· Establishing or expanding a telework program within the organization based on the recommendations of the selected telework consultant

· Selecting up to ten teleworkers for participation in the program

· Agreeing to offer a minimum of two telework days per week per participating employee

· Participating in the telework program for a minimum of two years

· Designating a telework coordinator to oversee the development of the telework program

· Forming a telework team to work with the consultant

· Providing top-level management commitment to achieve the objectives of the Telework Virginia program within the organization

Ms. Capelli stated that the National Headstart Association (NHSA) is located in Alexandria, Virginia and that it is a private not-for-profit membership organization dedicated to meeting the needs of Head Start children and their families.  NHSA currently employs 42 individuals who are experienced with working remotely.  When the TWVA pilot began at NHSA, the organization had no formal telework policy in place.  Ms. Capelli stated that the greatest challenge in working with NHSA was coordinating meetings, training and focus groups due to the travel schedules of the employees.  Ms. Capelli addressed NHSA’s purpose for participation in the TWVA pilot, eligibility, schedules and hours of workers, workspace, equipment and supplies, employee access and availability, security, liability, the application process, and evaluation.

National Head Start Deputy Director, Michael McCready, said that as a result of NHSA’s participation in the Telework Virginia pilot program, productivity increased and that he was well satisfied with the impact the program had on his organization.  He further stated that his organization serves every Head Start in the country and that his employees travel regularly and are often involved in training.  He stated that telework has worked well for those individuals who are involved in training as well.

Insofar as the survey was concerned, Mr. McCready said that his employees did not fully comprehend the significance of the survey and the impact it might have on the TWVA program.

Ms. Capelli then provided the group with an overview of UXB International, located near Ashburn, Virginia, and explained that this organization provides turnkey services for the mitigation of hazards associated with ordnance, chemical warfare material, reactives, energetics and terrorism threats, to name a few.  The program began in December 2001 when UXB selected ten employees to participate in the Telework Virginia pilot program.  Ms. Capelli stated that UXB’s president ultimately wanted to have all staff teleworking and that he promotes Telework Virginia to all UXB employees.  Ms. Capelli explained that UXB’s Information Technology point of contact was very involved in the program from the onset.  Ms. Capelli stated that CITRIX was used to help implement TWVA and that teleworking employees had to bring their equipment to the office once a month to ensure that all systems were in proper working order.

Ms. Capelli stated that the greatest challenge in working with the UXB employees centered on the coordination of on-site meetings, training and focus group activities due to the travel schedules of the employees.

When Ms. Capelli concluded her presentation, Mr. McElligott presented certificates of appreciation to Mr. McCready of National Head Start and Ms. Linda Sharp of UXB.  Mr. McElligott thanked them both for their participation in the Telework Virginia pilot program.

Telework Resource Center Update

Ms. Campbell gave an update of recent activities of the Telework Resource Center.  

She said that since the October Telecommuting Ad Hoc meeting, the Telework Resource Center had hosted a MATAC program meeting, “Telework Incentives in the Region” at COG, met with the Greater Washington Board of Trade to discuss opportunities to promote regional telework programs, conducted a planning meeting with WorkLife Performance, Inc. to review new workshop content and dates and to discuss the curriculum and structure for the upcoming employer workshops, attended the Hagerstown Telework Center Anniversary luncheon, met with the Telework Consortium to discuss the Expanded telework TERM and to experience their video conferencing technology, presented at the Federal Real Property Management Conference, attended the Greater Washington Business Expo and manned the Commuter Connections exhibit, contacted numerous District of Columbia employers to determine the status of telework at their organizations, arranged the speakers and moderating panel of employers for the “Let’s Talk Telework” event in Alexandria, worked with the Expanded Telework TERM contractor to determine the progress of the program and reviewed all program materials, attended the OPM Telework training session, attended the Metropolitan Washington WorkLife Coalition Annual Awards Luncheon, and began the 2003 Employer Telework Seminar Survey process.

Ms. Campbell then presented the highlights of the FY05 Commuter Connections Work Program.  She stated that in FY05 the TRC would continue the Employer Workshops by offering three full day workshops and six half-day workshops.  She said workshop topics will include: “Managing Teleworkers and Remote Teams,” Choosing and Using the Right Telework Technology”, and “Training Your Teleworkers for Anywhere, Anytime Performance.”  Ms. Campbell said that workshops would be marketed primarily by direct mail and email within private and public sector organizations.

Ms. Campbell went on to say that the TRC will continue to distribute telework information kits and videos, provide information through the Commuter Connections website, kiosks, and newsletter and present information on the MWTRC to professional and business trade organizations.

Ms. Campbell stated that the MWTRC would continue to implement the Expanded Telecommuting TERM, which is a two-year effort, from FY04-FY06 to assist employers and federal government agencies to expand the number of teleworkers at their worksite.  The emphasis will be on private sector employers located in northern Virginia and suburban Maryland and large federal government agencies.  Results from the two-year effort will be captured in the FY05 MWTRC TERM analysis.

Ms. Campbell concluded by saying that during COG’s FY05 ongoing marketing assistance will be provided to the Telework centers by promoting the regional Telework centers through radio advertisements and direct mail campaigns, continuing to promote center-based telework through redesigned employer workshops and continuing to provide telework center information through the Commuter Connections newsletter, Internet website and kiosks, the WMTC website and at transportation fairs, meetings, and other events.

Mr. Ramfos addressed the protocol for reviewing the FY 05 Work Program and making comments and edits.

Telework Partnership with Employers Program

Mr. McElligott reported on the status of the Telework Partnership with Employers Program by stating that there are currently 19 companies participating in the Washington Metropolitan region.  He said that there are two new companies which have joined the TPE: ICPRB and United Educators.

Mr. McElligott stated that a meeting was held in November to discuss possible modifications to the TPE pilot program.  He added that the TPE website was being reconfigures and that a new brochure was being designed.  Both of these activities are being undertaken by MDOT.

Ms. Byrd said that TPE would continue with quarterly meetings and would be somewhat revamped in the coming months.  She said that the state would like to see the program get more coverage through more aggressive marketing.

Ms. Byrd went on to say that the TPE is encouraging the program consultants to make suggestions for improving the program.  She further stated that the January consultant meeting would be postponed until further notice.

Mr. Michael asked about the Census participation in the TPE program.  Ms. Campbell explained that she felt that there might have been contractual issues, but the Census Bureau never made a formal statement as to why they decided not to participate in the program.

Ms. Tucker said that MATAC had offered to put information on both incentive programs on the MATAC website.

Mr. Michael followed up with a request for information about TPE and Telework Virginia to send out on the GSA list serve.

Ms. Capelli inquired as to the number of web hits the TRC gets per month.

Mr. McElligott responded that the telework numbers were in the top five of the Commuter Connections offerings.

Mr. Ramfos said that one of the Commuter Connections goals is to enable 20% of the regional workforce to be telecommuting by 2005 and the TPB adopted the Expanded TERM to encourage employers to expand their programs.

Expanded Telework TERM Update

Ms. Campbell reported that to date  Telecommuting Advantage Group, the selected contractor, has contacted 93 private companies. She added that while three government agencies have been contacted, this is the next area that TAG will concentrate on.

Ms. Campbell also reported that Booz Allen, Northrup Grumman, Mitre, KPMG, NIH, Marriott International and Verizon are being contacted in January and that these employers have given several reasons for wanting to participate in this telecommuting project.  Those reasons include:  real-estate savings, productivity gains, employee retention, and a desire to be an employer of choice in the region.  She further explained that companies are responding to the individualized goals of organizations as they make a business case for telework.

Ms. Campbell stated that TAG will be meeting with Dimensions Health (Alexandria INOVA Hospital is a part of this system), Arlington County, Boston Properties, and the City of Alexandria in February.  She added that TAG is in the process of drafting a letter to federal agencies and will be forwarding that letter to COG for review.  The intent of this document is to garner support and pre-build a case for telework and involvement in the Expanded TERM.  The goal of this letter is to solicit support from national and regional Congressional representatives.

Mr. Ramfos explained that COG wants to partner with large federal agencies and that he participated in a conference call with OPM, GSA, and DOT to prepare for the press briefing that will take place in January.  He addressed the issue of large construction projects coming up and that telework could help with traffic congestion issues in the region.  He stated that Commuter Connections is attempting to create an awareness for telework by implementing the Expanded TERM.  He stated that he would like to get even more companies involved.  He said that the government agencies are more challenging and gave OPM’s strategy as an example.

Ms. Tucker spoke of the Pittsburgh construction project and said that telework continued to be a hard sell, even though it was one of the simpler options for commuters.

Mr. Ramfos responded by saying that telework is a hard sell with many companies but hopefully these companies are looking at additional benefits of telework.  He stated that one of the strengths that TAG brings to the project is their approach, which is unique to anything that has been done in the region before.

Ms. Tucker commented on the fact that many of the companies mentioned were focusing on the economic issue of reducing current real estate costs by implementing a telework program.

Mr. Michael asked when the press briefing would take place.  Mr. Ramfos responded that the briefing would take place the last week in January.  The tentative date is January 26, 2004 and KPMG, a Board of Trade member, will probably host the event. 

Mr. Michael said that on January 27, a GSA Webinar (also mentioned later under “Other Business) will take place, and be moderated by Gil Gordon.  He said that he could work something into the Webinar about the Expanded TERM and the press briefing. Mr. Ramfos said that Wendell Joice is trying to lead this initiative on the federal side. 

Ms. Capelli added that the Bridge Bucks program is an incentive to get more drive alone individuals participating in transit as per bus and commuter rail.  She further stated that her company is actively working with Commuter Connections to reach 1000 commuters per month and enlist them in this project. Ms. Tucker offered support from MATAC by posting information about the Webinar and about Bridge Bucks on the MATAC website.

Other Business

Mr. Michael stated that the annual report to Congress is now in draft format.  He said that there would be modest increases in the number of teleworkers.  He said that OPM did a better job in getting agencies to more accurately report the number of teleworkers.  He said that these numbers reflect the people who are consistently teleworking.  Mr. Michael stated that this report would be released in February.

Insofar as the GSA video is concerned, Mr. Michael said that it is complete and somewhere in the production chain.  The status of the report to Congress will be announced at the Webinar on January 27.  He added that the Webinar would recapture the information that was presented at the November OPM meeting.

Mr. Michael addressed the web-based telework training by stating that the OPM/GSA employees segment is still not live.  He said that only federal employers would be able to access this training.  He said that the managers segment of the training had had script approval.  The employer segment will become live shortly.

Ms. Bray asked if the Webinar would be available to the telework center directors.  Mr. Michael replied that he would see to it that this group was included.

Ms. Tucker said that MATAC would partner with Clean Commute in May.  This endeavor is in partnership with Baltimore Metropolitan Council (BMC).  She stated that the first Clean Commute meeting was held in December and that as a result of the meeting, MATAC will conduct some of the seminars.

Ms. Bray asked if there would be exhibit space available during this event.  Ms. Tucker responded that exhibit space and other activities were being explored.  Ms. Tucker explained that this would be addressed at the January 8 MATAC Board meeting.

Ms. Campbell asked if anyone had any other business they would like to discuss.  There were no other comments and the meeting was adjourned at 11:33 a.m.

Note:  The next meeting of the Telecommuting Ad-Hoc Group will be held on April 7, 2004 at 10:00 a.m. at the Metropolitan Washington Council of Governments.  Please contact Danette Campbell via email at dcampbell@mwcog.org if you would like to attend this meeting by conference call.
PAGE  
1

